User's Guide **OPT3004DTSEVM User's Guide**

TEXAS INSTRUMENTS

ABSTRACT

This user's guide describes the characteristics, operation, and use of the OPT3004DTSEVM evaluation module. It discusses how to set up and configure the software and hardware, and reviews various aspects of the program operation. Throughout this document, the terms evaluation board, evaluation module, and EVM are synonymous with the OPT3004DTSEVM. This document also includes an electrical schematic, printed circuit board (PCB) layout drawings, and a parts list for the EVM.



Table of Contents

1 Overview	3
1.1 OPT3004DTSEVM Kit Contents	
1.2 Related Documentation from Texas Instruments	4
2 OPT3004DTSEVM Hardware	
2.1 Theory of Operation for the OPT3004DTSEVM	6
2.2 OPT3004DTSEVM Hardware Overview	6
3 OPT3004DTSEVM Software	7
3.1 Hardware Requirements	7
3.2 Software Installation	7
3.3 Typical OPT3004DTSEVM Hardware Setup	11
3.4 Launching the OPT3004EVM Software	13
3.5 OPT3004DTSEVM Software Operation	14
4 Schematic, PCB Layout, and Bill of Materials	19
4.1 Coupon Board	19
4.2 Motherboard	
5 Troubleshooting	27
5.1 Microsoft Windows 7 Manual Driver Installation	
6 Revision History	33

List of Figures

Figure 1-1. Hardware Included with OPT3004DTSEVM Kit	3
Figure 2-1. OPT3004DTSEVM Hardware Setup	5
Figure 3-1. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation File	
Figure 3-2. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Launch	
Figure 3-3. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Prompts	
Figure 3-4. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Prompts	. 9
Figure 3-5. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Prompts	
Figure 3-6. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Prompts	
5	



Figure 3-7. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Prompts	10
Figure 3-8. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Prompts	
Figure 3-9. Typical Hardware Connection	11
Figure 3-10. Typical Response After Connecting OPT3004DTSEVM to the Computer	
Figure 3-11. OPT3004 Main Operation Screen.	
Figure 3-12. Hardware Error Message	13
Figure 3-13. GUI Capture Running.	
Figure 3-14. Latte Scripts Window	
Figure 3-15. Registers View	17
Figure 4-1. OPT3004 Coupon Board Schematic	
Figure 4-2. PCB Top Layer	<mark>20</mark>
Figure 4-3. PCB Bottom Layer	20
Figure 4-4. PCB Top-Layer Assembly Drawing	
Figure 4-5. PCB Bottom-Layer Assembly Drawing	
Figure 4-6. OPTMBEVM Schematic	22
Figure 4-7. PCB Top Layer	
Figure 4-8. PCB Bottom Layer	
Figure 4-9. PCB Top-Layer Assembly Drawing	24
Figure 4-10. PCB Bottom-Layer Assembly Drawing	<mark>24</mark>
Figure 5-1. OPT3004DTSEVM on Microsoft® Windows® 7 With Drivers not Installed	<mark>27</mark>

Trademarks

Windows 10[®], Microsoft[®], and Windows[®] are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation. All trademarks are the property of their respective owners.



1 Overview

The OPT3004 is an ambient light sensor (ALS) with a digital output integrated circuit. It uses a two-wire interface that works with the I²C protocol making it ideal for many applications. The OPT3004DTSEVM is a platform for evaluating the performance of the OPT3004 under various conditions. The OPT3004DTSEVM consists of two PCBs. The first is the OPTMB EVM board that communicates with the computer, provides power, and sends and receives appropriate digital signals. The second is the OPT3004DTS coupon board, which contains the OPT3004DTS and its support circuitry.

1.1 OPT3004DTSEVM Kit Contents

Table 1-1 summarizes the contents of the OPT3004DTSEVM kit. Figure 1-1 shows the included hardware. Contact the Texas Instruments Product Information Center nearest you if any component is missing. It is highly recommended that you also check the OPT3004 Product Folder on the TI web site at www.ti.com to verify you have the latest versions of the released software.

Item	Quantity
OPT3004 coupon board (Installed on OPTMBEVM)	1
OPTMBEVM board	1
USB type A to type C cable	1



Figure 1-1. Hardware Included with OPT3004DTSEVM Kit

1.2 Related Documentation from Texas Instruments

The following documents provide information regarding Texas Instruments' integrated circuits used in the assembly of the OPT3004DTSEVM. This user's guide is available from the TI web site under literature number **SBOU274**. Any letter appended to the literature number corresponds to the document revision that is current at the time of the writing of this document. The latest revision can be found by clicking the link Table 1-2 and is also available from the TI web site, the Texas Instruments' Literature Response Center at (800) 477-8924, and the Product Information Center at (972) 644-5580. When ordering, identify the document by both title and literature number.

Document	Literature Number
OPT3004 product data sheet	SBOS929



2 OPT3004DTSEVM Hardware

Figure 2-1 shows the system setup for the OPT3004DTSEVM. The computer runs the graphical user interface (GUI) software that communicates with the OPTMBEVM board over a USB connection. The OPTMBEVM has a USB Type C port and ships with a USB-C to USB-A cable. The OPTMBEVM board acts as a bridge between the software running on the PC and the OPT3004DTS coupon board. The MSP430 on the OPTMBEVM recieves USB commands from the PC and communicates with the OPT3004DTS over I2C.



Figure 2-1. OPT3004DTSEVM Hardware Setup



2.1 Theory of Operation for the OPT3004DTSEVM

The OPT3004 coupon consists of the OPT3004 IC, decoupling capacitor, and 8 pins. The pins create connections for the power, I²C, and an interrupt signal between the coupon and the EVM motherboard. For evaluation purposes the coupon can be removed from the motherboard to use with other platforms. The motherboard also has an unpopulated 5-pin header footprint for easy access to the supply, ground, I2C and inturrupt lines.

2.2 OPT3004DTSEVM Hardware Overview

The EVM ships with the coupon plugged into the motherboard. If not already assembled, the basic hardware setup for the OPT3004DTSEVM involves plugging the coupon board into the motherboard socket. Take special care to make sure the coupon is oriented correctly as shown in Figure 1-1. Then connect the USB cable. This section presents the details of this procedure.

CAUTION

Many of the components on the OPT3004DTSEVM are susceptible to damage by electrostatic discharge (ESD). Customers are advised to observe proper ESD handling precautions when unpacking and handling the EVM, including the use of a grounded wrist strap at an approved ESD workstation.



3 OPT3004DTSEVM Software

This section describes the installation and operation of the OPT3004DTSEVM software. The OPT3004DTSEVM uses the TI Latte software, which is available for download on the EVM page.

3.1 Hardware Requirements

The OPT3001EVM software has been tested on the Windows 10[®] operating system (OS) with United States regional settings. The software should function correctly on other Windows operating systems.

3.2 Software Installation

The OPT3004DTSEVM software is available through the OPT3004DTSEVM Product Folder on the TI web site (www.ti.com). To install the software to your computer, navigate to the OPT3004DTSEVM software, and open the installer directory. Launch the OPT3004DTSEVM installation file, *OPT3004DTS_EVM_Latte.exe*, as shown in the figure below.

😽 OPT3004DTS_EVM_Latte.exe

Figure 3-1. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation File

7



The OPT3004EVM software then begins the installation process, as shown in Figure 3-2.

🔀 Setup - TI-Latte version 0.8.3 —	×
License Agreement Please read the following important information before continuing.	
Please read the following License Agreement. You must accept the terms of this agreement before continuing with the installation.	
Source and Binary Code Internal Use License Agreement	^
IMPORTANT – PLEASE CAREFULLY READ THE FOLLOWING LICENSE AGREEMENT, WHICH IS LEGALLY BINDING. AFTER YOU READ IT, YOU WILL BE ASKED WHETHER YOU ACCEPT AND AGREE TO ITS TERMS. DO NOT CLICK "I HAVE READ AND AGREE" UNLESS: (1) YOU WILL USE THE LICENSED MATERIALS FOR YOUR OWN BENEFIT AND PERSONALLY ACCEPT. AGREE TO AND INTEND TO BE BOUND BY THESE TERMS: OR (2)	
 I accept the agreement I do not accept the agreement 	
Next	Cancel

Figure 3-2. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Launch

Follow the prompts as shown in Figure 3-3 to Figure 3-8 to install the OPT3004DTSEVM software.

🔀 Setup - TI-Latte version 0.8.3	_		\times
Select Destination Location Where should TI-Latte be installed?		(
Setup will install TI-Latte into the following folder.			
To continue, click Next. If you would like to select a different folder,	click Bro	owse.	
C:\Program Files\Texas Instruments\Latte	В	rowse	
At least 64.8 MB of free disk space is required.			
Back Ne	xt	Can	ncel

Figure 3-3. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Prompts



掲 Setup - TI-Latte version 0.8.3	_		×
Select Project Directory Where should project files be installed?			
Select the folder in which Setup should install project files, then click I	Vext.		
C:\Users\a0227156\Documents\Texas Instruments\Latte	В	rowse]
Back Nex	t	Can	cel

Figure 3-4. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Prompts

🔀 Setup - TI-Latte version 0.8.3	_		×
Select Start Menu Folder Where should Setup place the program's shortcuts?			
Setup will create the program's shortcuts in the following S	tart Me	nu folder.	
To continue, click Next. If you would like to select a different folder,	click Br	owse.	
Texas Instruments	E	Browse	
Back Ne	xt	Ca	ncel

Figure 3-5. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Prompts



🔂 Setup - TI-Latte version 0.8.3		_		\times
Select Additional Tasks Which additional tasks should be performed?			G	
Select the additional tasks you would like Setup to p then click Next.	perform while	installing TI-	Latte,	
Create a desktop icon				
Ba	ack	Next	Can	cel

Figure 3-6. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Prompts

🔂 Setup - TI-Latte version 0.8.3	_		×
Ready to Install Setup is now ready to begin installing TI-Latte on your computer.			
Click Install to continue with the installation, or click Back if you want to change any settings.	reviev	v or	
Destination location: C:\Program Files\Texas Instruments\Latte		1	`
Start Menu folder: Texas Instruments			
<		>	/
Back Install		Ca	ncel

Figure 3-7. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Prompts





Figure 3-8. OPT3004DTSEVM Software-Installation Prompts

The OPT3004EVM GUI software is now installed.

3.3 Typical OPT3004DTSEVM Hardware Setup

Plug the male USB-C cable to the OPTMBEVM board and then plug the male USB-A cable into the computer. The green light will light up on the EVM as shown in the figure below.



Figure 3-9. Typical Hardware Connection



The figure below shows the typical response when the EVM is plugged into the USB port of the computer for the first time. Typically, the computer responds with a *Found New Hardware, USB Device* pop-up dialog window. The pop-up window then typically changes to *Found New Hardware, USB Human Interface Device*. This pop-up indicates that the device is ready to be used.



Figure 3-10. Typical Response After Connecting OPT3004DTSEVM to the Computer

Connect the EVM via USB to the PC. If Windows shows a notification that a driver is not found for the device connected, see the instructions to manually install drivers in Section 5.1 before proceeding.



3.4 Launching the OPT3004EVM Software

With the OPT3004DTSEVM properly connected, launch the Latte EVM GUI software from the Windows *Start* menu. The software launches with a screen similar to that shown in Figure 3-11.



Figure 3-11. OPT3004 Main Operation Screen

If the message shown in Figure 3-12 appears when the OPT3004EVM GUI software is launched, this means that the EVM motherboard was not detected. Check the USB connection and that the motherboard appears in the device manager as shown. A green light will appear on the motherboard if it is recieving power from the PC and the GUI "start capture" button has not been clicked.





3.5 OPT3004DTSEVM Software Operation

This section primarily discusses how to operate the OPT3004DTSEVM software. The GUI has a primary window that is used to configure and read from the OPT3004DTSEVM, along with two other windows that are used to access different features of the OPT3004DTSEVM. Basic GUI functionality and a description of the tabs are also presented in this section.

3.5.1 Getting Started

To quickly start using the device, click the "Operation Select" dropdown and select "Continuous" to bring the device out of power down mode. Then click "Start Capture" to begin data capture. The green LED on the motherboard will turn off. Lux data will appear above the lux plot as shown. The plot will also start to populate with the device lux readings.



Figure 3-13. GUI Capture Running

If the GUI is not responsive, check the other Latte scripts window, which is minimized by default. If the message "Operation I2C Register Read for command [REGRx01] Failed." is displayed this means that the OPT3004 IC or coupon is not detected by the motherboard. Ensure the coupon is plugged in and properly oriented.

3.5.2 Feature Descriptions

3.5.2.1 Lux Plot

In the center of the GUI window you will see a plot showing the lux reading from the device on the y-axis and the sample number on the x-axis. The plot settings can be tweaked by right clicking on the plot. The x-axis and y-axis options under the right-click menu allow the range of x and y-axes displayed to be changed. There is also an auto option that will dynamically change the range to match the data. Scrolling will zoom in to or zoom out from the plot. Left-clicking and dragging will display a yellow rectangle that will, upon releasing the mouse, zoom the data to the rectangle drawn. Right-clicking and dragging up or down zooms the y-axis. Right-clicking and dragging right or left will zoom the x-axis. Right clicking and selecting "View All" will reset the view.



3.5.2.2 Drop-down Selectors

At the top left of the plot are two drop-down selectors.

The *operation select* drop-down menu allows the device operating mode to be switched between the power down and continuous capture modes. The oneshot mode of the device is not exposed by the EVM GUI.

The *mode select* drop down changes the device gain range setting mode. The device supports automatic gain control (ACG), which is the recommended mode setting for most use cases, or the gain range of the device can be selected manually using this drop-down menu.

The device supports two *conversion times*: 100 ms and 800 ms, which can be selected using the respective drop-down menu.

The display sample count selects how many samples are displayed on the x-axis of the plot.

3.5.2.3 Save to File

The set save to file name check box allows the data captured in the GUI to be dumped to a CSV file. Clicking this check box will display a windows file selector screen. Select the directory to store the CSV and set the name for the CSV. After clicking save the GUI will wait for you to click the *start capture* button to start saving data and susequently it will wait for a click on the *stop capture* button to copy all the data into the indicated CSV file. When capturing data with save enabled, the GUI will initially dump the data to temporary .npy files. After clicking *stop capture* this data is written over to the CSV file and .npy files removed.

3.5.2.4 Mean, Std, and the Blue Slider

There is a blue slider on the lux plot shown on the right side of the plot in the figure. Mean and Std columns in the table where capture data is displayed are calculated from only the data within the blue slider. Left-clicking on the middle of this slider and dragging moves the slider. Left-clicking on the edge of either side of the slider and dragging will adjust the size of the slider. This allows the mean and standard deviation of the distance, phase, and amplitude to be computed for any continuous portion of the displayed data. If capture is running this data updates in real-time along with the data in the Live column.



3.5.2.5 Scripts Window

When Latte is launched the GUI window appears front and center. However, there is a second window that is minimized at launch. This is the scripts window and exposes some more advanced features of the Latte platform. See Latte Scripts Window .

👫 TI-Latte		- a ×
Eile Edit View Bun Log Session H	elp	
Scripts	Imagort serial from PySide import QtGore, QtGui	↑ Instrument List *
Files	3	
✓OPT3004	dof evsSelectorSelected(val): global regPtog.copPev.dev.evmfile.evsSelectList.evsSelectList.evsSelectCantralWidget.evmProgressBar	
> drivers	grows reprove any event state event state event state event and event state event of the state event of t	
✓OPT3004DTS EVM	7 evmProgressBar.setValue(10)	
04-launchGUI.py	<pre>if(vype(val) is gtGal, DLisValighetLen): selection=vmSelectLinkValight.correntbov()</pre>	
captureDataStructure.py	else:	
devlnit.py	11 selection-val 12 evritie-evriestist[selection]	
mEVMSelector.py	<pre>ii evmitte=evmostectist[selection] i reeProg = MSPF52920ntroller.MSP5329RegProgrammer(addr=evmList.control[0])</pre>	
mEVMSelector.py	<pre>14 capDev = mMSPF5529Controller.MSP5529 OPT4XXX Capture(dataPort=evmList.data[0],controlPort=evmList.control[0])</pre>	tes a real
mMSP5529Programmer.py	15 dev = nDevice.Device(fileName=scriptsRootDir+ ² opt3001.dml ² ,ignoreLast=False,regProgDevice=	Device List *
mMSP5529Programmer.pyc	17 mainWindow.runFile(scriptsRootDir(r'/resetDevice.py')	Registers View
opt3001.dml	<pre>improgressBar.setValue(40) implicateGUIFromDevice.py')</pre>	
OPT4001.dml	20 evmProgressBar.setValue(50)	
resetDevice.py	21 mainWindow.runFile(scriptsRootDir+r'/captureDataStructure.py')	
updateGUIFromDevice.py	<pre>22 evmProgressBar.setValue(70) 23 mainFindow.runFile(sertpterBootDir+t*/04-LaunchGUT.pv*)</pre>	
> OPT3004DTS_EVM_prelim	24 evmProgressBar.setValue(100)	
>OPT3004DTS_EVM_prelim >OPT3101	25 evadelectWindow.close()	
>OPT4001	27 if('dev' in locals().keys()):	
>OPT4001	28 errorMessage=UtGui.(GErrorMessage() 29 errorMessage=MovMessage("Pilease clear session, Session->Clear Bession (CTRL+7) or close and restart Latte")	Engine List *
2 OP14046_0Id	10 efformedsage.snoweedsage() reade clear dession, dession-solear dession (chr/r) of close and restart ratte / 10 efformedsage.resize(500,250)	Engine Loc -
	li else:	
	32 ## Imports	
	34 import imp	
	import mDevice	
	37 scriptsRoatDir=PRDJECTS_DIR+r'0PT3004/0PT3004D7S_EVN/'	
	BYWSelector=imp.load source('mEYMSelector',scriptsRootDir+r'mEYMSelector.pv')	
	40 mMSPF5529Controller-imp.load source('mMSPF5529Controller',scriptsRootDir+'/mMSP5529Programmer.py')	
	evnList-mEVMSelector.EVMSelector()	
	43 ## Instance creation	Custom GUI List #
	45 www.oud-Palse	
	<pre>45 whielphot examples.</pre>	
	47 evmList=mEVMSelector.EVMSelector()	
	48 if (len (wmList.control)>0): wwwFound-True wwwFound-True	
	50 break	
	51 msgBox=dtGii.(MesnaageBox() 52 msdBox.=ctrox("OPTPado Connection Problem")	
	53 msqBox.setIcon(QtGui.QNessageBox.Critical)	
	magho, astifying the formative and the second se	~
Log	maidbox.setstantartinbuccons.qt.teiri.qteesaateesox.eectry qt.teiri.qteesaateesox.eectry qt.teiri.qteesaateesox.eectry command Line	
CAPE; Sending command to stop captu		
CMD: 2021-10-12 19:01:10.433000 CA	from globalDefs import *	
RES: 2021-10-12 19:01:10.453000 CAP		
CMD: 2021-10-12 19:01:10.455000 GPI RES: 2021-10-12 19:01:10.484000 GPI		
NC3. 2021-10-12 19:01:10.484000 GPR	ALIAU OPPOLIALIA	

Figure 3-14. Latte Scripts Window

The scripts window also provides access to the device registers view that displays the stored value of the device registers and allows them to be changed directly. Launch the registers view by double clicking on the "Registers View" button under the "Device List" box on the right side of the screen.





Figure 3-15. Registers View

3.5.2.6 Overview of Device Registers

Register 0x00 is the result register and provides the output data from the device as an exponent and mantissa value indicated as e and r in the register view.

Register 0x01 is the configuration register and provides feedback about the state of the device; the bit names and full descriptions are shown in the OPT3004 data sheet. Each of the read-only status bits are greyed out and cannot be changed.

Registers 0x02 and 0x03 enforce low and high limits, respectively, on the output ranges (exponent) and values (mantissa) from the OPT3004. These registers are not included in the register view.



3.5.2.7 Additional Features of the Scripts Window

3.5.2.7.1 Hidden IDE Window

The Latte program runs a number of python scripts in the background to capture and display data from the EVM. These scripts allow for initialization of the device including loading calibration data from the EVM flash memory, launching a live view window with measurement plot and readings, and additional functionality such as reading from the flash and selecting a specific LED current for the device to use. For advance users or users looking for more flexibility when using the OPT3101EVM these python scripts are available in an integrated development environment (IDE) window that is minimized when TI-Latte is launched. The IDE window allows advanced users to customize the existing scripts or write new scripts.

After launching Latte, expand the OPT3004DTS directory on the left hand side of the window under Files by clicking the triangle to the left of the directory name. This displays the OPT3004DTSEVM folder. Further expanding the OPT3004DTSEVM folder will display all the example scripts as shown in the figure.

3.5.2.7.2 devInit.py

Open the devInit.py script by clicking on the corresponding file in the OPT3004DTSEVM folder on the left side of the screen. This displays the contents of the script on the center of the window. With devInit.py still selected in TI-Latte, click Run>Buffer from the top menu bar of TI-Latte (or press F5) to run the script. Once completed, the live view GUI is opened in a new window. More details on the live view GUI are given in the following section. Additional info is also displayed in the log window in the lower left- hand corner of the main window.

3.5.2.7.3 04-launchGUI.py

A liveview GUI window is launched when running the devInit.py script. This allows data from the OPT3004 to be viewed on a graph in real time. The GUI is created in the launchGUI.py example script. When running devInit.py, the launchGUI.py script is automatically run. However, if the GUI window is closed it can be re-launched by directly running the launchGUI.py script. To do this, select the launchGUI.py script and click Run>Buffer or press F5. Figure 3-13 shows the live GUI plot.



4 Schematic, PCB Layout, and Bill of Materials

4.1 Coupon Board

4.1.1 Schematic

Figure 4-1 shows the schematic of the OPT3004DTS coupon board. C1 is a bypass capacitor for device VDD.



Figure 4-1. OPT3004 Coupon Board Schematic



4.1.2 PCB Layout

Figure 4-2 and Figure 4-3 show the top and bottom PCB layers, respectively, of the coupon board. Figure 4-4 and Figure 4-5 show the assembly drawings of the top and bottom PCB layers, respectively.







Figure 4-3. PCB Bottom Layer





Figure 4-4. PCB Top-Layer Assembly Drawing



Figure 4-5. PCB Bottom-Layer Assembly Drawing



4.1.3 Bill of Materials

Table 4-1 lists the bill of materials for the OPT3004DTS coupon board.

Table 4-1.	OPT3004DTS	Coupon	Bill of Materials

Designator	Quantity	Description	PartNumber	Manufacturer
C1	1	CAP, CERM, 1 uF, 10 V, +/- 10%, X7S, AEC-Q200 Grade 1, 0402	GCM155C71A105KE38D	MuRata
J1, J2, J3, J4, J5, J6, J7, J8	8	PC Pin Terminal Connector Through Hole Gold 0.017" (0.43mm) Dia	3121-2-00-15-00-00-08-0	Mill-Max
U1	1	Ambient Light Sensor (ALS) With Excellent AngularIR Rejectio	OPT3004DTS	Texas Instruments

4.2 Motherboard

4.2.1 Schematic

Figure 4-1 shows the complete schematic of the OPTMBEVM motherboard. The schematic is split into three sections: connector, MSP430, and socket. A USB type C connector is used to interface with the PC. The MSP430 microcontroller allows the PC to interface with the OPT3004DTS through I2C. The coupon board containing the OPT3004DTS plugs into the motherboard through the socket. The OPTMBEVM board provides easy access to the I2C, INT, VDD, and GND lines. The header J2 is depopulated on the EVM by default and its labeled through hole pads can be used to access the lines. Alternatively, a header can be populated at J2 for easier access.







4.2.2 PCB Layout

Figure 4-2 and Figure 4-3 show the top and bottom PCB layers, respectively, of the test board. Figure 4-4 and Figure 4-5 show the assembly drawings of the top and bottom PCB layers, respectively.



Figure 4-7. PCB Top Layer



Figure 4-8. PCB Bottom Layer













4.2.3 Bill of Materials

Table 4-2 lists the bill of materials for the OPTMBEVM motherboard.

Table 4-2. OPTMBEVM Bill of Materials

Designator	Quantity	Description	PartNumber	Manufacturer
C1	1	CAP, CERM, 1 uF, 10 V, +/- 10%, X7S, AEC-Q200 Grade 1, 0402	GCM155C71A105KE38D	MuRata
J1, J2, J3, J4, J5, J6, J7, J8	8	PC Pin Terminal Connector Through Hole Gold 0.017" (0.43mm) Dia	3121-2-00-15-00-00-08-0	Mill-Max
R2	1	RES, 620, 5%, 0.05 W, 0201	RC0201JR-07620RL	Yageo America
R5, R18	2	RES, 0, 5%, .05 W, AEC- Q200 Grade 0, 0201	ERJ-1GN0R00C	Panasonic
R7	1	RES, 1.5 k, 5%, 0.05 W, 0201	RC0201JR-071K5L	Yageo America
R8	1	RES, 100, 1%, 0.05 W, 0201	ERJ-1GEF1000C	Panasonic
R9	1	RES, 1.00 M, 1%, 0.05 W, AEC-Q200 Grade 0, 0201	RK73H1HTTC1004F	KOA Speer
R10	1	RES, 47 k, 5%, 0.05 W, 0201	RC0201JR-0747KL	Yageo America
R11, R12	2	RES, 27, 5%, 0.05 W, 0201	RC0201JR-0727RL	Yageo America
R13, R14, R15	3	RES, 4.7 k, 5%, 0.05 W, 0201	RC0201JR-074K7L	Yageo America
R16, R17	2	RES SMD 5.1K OHM 5% 1/20W 0201	CRCW02015K10JNED	Vishay Dale
S1	1	Switch, Tactile, SPST-NO, 0.05A, 12V, SMD	RS-032G05A3-SM RT	C&K Components
U1	1	Socket, DIP-8, 2.54 mm Pitch, SMT	114-87-308-41-134161	Preci-Dip
U2	1	Low-Capacitance + / - 15 kV ESD-Protection Array for High-Speed Data Interfaces, 2 Channels, -40 to +85 degC, 6-pin SON (DRS), Green (RoHS & no Sb/Br)	TPD2E001DRST-NM	Texas Instruments
U3	1	Single Output Low Noise LDO, 400 mA, Fixed 3.3 V Output, 1.7 to 5.5 V Input, with Reverse Current Protection, 5-pin SOT-23 (DBV), -40 to 85 degC, Green (RoHS & no Sb/Br)	TPS73633DBVT	Texas Instruments
U4	1	Mixed Signal Microcontroller, RGZ0048A (VQFN-48)	MSP430F5503IRGZR	Texas Instruments
Y1	1	Crystal, 24 MHz, 10 pF, SMD	ABM3B-24.000MHZ-10-1- U-T	Abracon Corporation
FID1, FID2, FID3, FID4	0	Fiducial mark. There is nothing to buy or mount.	N/A	N/A
J2	0	Header, 2.54mm, 5x1, Gold, TH	61300511121	Wurth Elektronik



Table 4-2. OPTMBEVM Bill of Materials (continued)

Designator	Quantity	Description	PartNumber	Manufacturer
R4		RES, 0, 5%, .05 W, AEC- Q200 Grade 0, 0201	ERJ-1GN0R00C	Panasonic



5 Troubleshooting

5.1 Microsoft Windows 7 Manual Driver Installation

This section outlines the manual driver installation process. If you are using Windows 7 or if the Windows device manager shows 2 USB Serial Devices under as *other devices* when the EVM is plugged in instead of COM ports as shown in Figure 5-1, use the following steps. If two *USB Serial Device* devices show up as COM ports automatically (as is the case with Windows 10), then this section can be skipped.



Figure 5-1. OPT3004DTSEVM on Microsoft® Windows® 7 With Drivers not Installed

1. Open the device manager.



2. Right click on USB Serial Device and select Properties.

3. Click the Update Driver... button.

neral	Driver Details		
1	OPT3101 Contro		
	Device type:	Other devices	
	Manufacturer;	Unknown	
	Location:	0000.001d.0000.001.001.000.000.00	0.000
elem	ent.	ed for the device information set or levice, click Update Driver.	
- IDE-JA		2022 - 5 4 5 5 5 6 5 6 7 6 5 7 6 5 7 6 5 7 6 7 6 7	Ŧ
	3	Update Driver	

4. Click Browse my computer for driver software

😡 🗕 Update Driver Software - OPT3101 Control	X
How do you want to search for driver software?	
Search automatically for updated driver software Windows will search your computer and the Internet for the latest driver software for your device, unless you've disabled this feature in your device installation settings.	
 Browse my computer for driver software Locate and install driver software manually. 	
	Cancel

Y

N N



5. Click Let me pick from a list of device drivers on my computer.

TOV	vse for driver software on your computer
earc	h for driver software in this location:
C:\U	sers\a0232950\Downloads\latest_usb_driver_windows\usb_driv 🔻 🛛 Browse
•	Let me pick from a list of device drivers on my computer This list will show installed driver software compatible with the device, and all driver

6. Select Show All Devices and click the Next button.

12

Select your device's type from the list below.	
Common hardware types:	and the second se
Show All Devices	*
🟺 61883 Device Class	=
AVC Devices	
Batteries	
Biometric Devices	
8 Bluetooth Radios	
r Computer	
ScontrolVault Device	
Disk drives	
Note: Section 2015 Parallel Section 2015 Par	
DVD/CD-ROM drives	-



7. Click the Have Disk... button.

	or this hardware.
Select the manufacturer and model of your hard disk that contains the driver you want to install,	
(Retrieving a list of all devices)	
	Have Disk
	Next

8. Click the Browse... button.



9. Navigate to "C:\Users\<username>\Documents\Texas Instruments\Latte\projects\OPT3004\drivers" and choose MSP430_CDC. Click the **Open** button.

Locate File					×
Look in:	drivers		•	G 🦸 📂 🛄 •	
Ø	Name	^		Date modified	Туре
Recent Places	MSP430_C	DC		12/14/2017 10:52	Setup Infc
Desktop					
Libraries					
Computer					
	•				
Network	File name:	MSP430_CDC		•	Open
	Files of type:	Setup Information (".inf)		*	Cancel



10. Click the OK button



11. Select the first USB serial device and click the Next button.

Selec	t the device driver you want to install for th	is hardware.
1	Select the manufacturer and model of your hardware disk that contains the driver you want to install, click	
Mode		
0	el PT3101 Control PT3101 Data	

12. Click the Yes button.





13. The driver should now install properly.

😡 🗓 Update Driver Software - OPT3101 Control (COM14)	
Windows has successfully updated your driver software	
Windows has finished installing the driver software for this device:	
OPT3101 Control	1
	3
	lose

14. Now repeat this process (steps 1 to 13) for the second *USB Serial Device*. All steps are the same except for step 2 and step 11. In step 2 make sure to right click the second *USB Serial Device*. Likewise, on step 11 make sure to select the second *USB Serial Device* when installing the driver as the following figure shows.

🍞 🧕 Update Driver Software - OPT3101 Data	
Select the device driver you want to install for this Select the manufacturer and model of your hardware d disk that contains the driver you want to install, click H	levice and then click Next. If you have a
Model OPT3101 Control OPT3101 Data	
This driver is not digitally signed! <u>Tell me why driver signing is important</u>	Have Disk
	<u>N</u> ext Cancel



15. When the driver is installed, you will see the following message.

Update Driver Software - OPT3101 Data (COM15)	
Windows has successfully updated your driver se	oftware
Windows has finished installing the driver software for this devi	ce:
OPT3101 Data	
	Close

16. The two USB Serial Device devices should now appear in the device manager under Ports (COM & LPT) as the following image shows.

Ports (COM & LPT)
Communications Port (COM1)
Communications Port (COM2)
OPT3101 Control (COM14)
OPT3101 Data (COM15)

6 Revision History

NOTE: Page numbers for previous revisions may differ from page numbers in the current version.

С	hanges from Revision * (December 2021) to Revision A (January 2022)	Page
•	Changed Figure 3-12	13
	Updated Figure 3-14 image to fit on the page	

IMPORTANT NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER

TI PROVIDES TECHNICAL AND RELIABILITY DATA (INCLUDING DATA SHEETS), DESIGN RESOURCES (INCLUDING REFERENCE DESIGNS), APPLICATION OR OTHER DESIGN ADVICE, WEB TOOLS, SAFETY INFORMATION, AND OTHER RESOURCES "AS IS" AND WITH ALL FAULTS, AND DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS AND IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT OF THIRD PARTY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS.

These resources are intended for skilled developers designing with TI products. You are solely responsible for (1) selecting the appropriate TI products for your application, (2) designing, validating and testing your application, and (3) ensuring your application meets applicable standards, and any other safety, security, regulatory or other requirements.

These resources are subject to change without notice. TI grants you permission to use these resources only for development of an application that uses the TI products described in the resource. Other reproduction and display of these resources is prohibited. No license is granted to any other TI intellectual property right or to any third party intellectual property right. TI disclaims responsibility for, and you will fully indemnify TI and its representatives against, any claims, damages, costs, losses, and liabilities arising out of your use of these resources.

TI's products are provided subject to TI's Terms of Sale or other applicable terms available either on ti.com or provided in conjunction with such TI products. TI's provision of these resources does not expand or otherwise alter TI's applicable warranties or warranty disclaimers for TI products.

TI objects to and rejects any additional or different terms you may have proposed.

Mailing Address: Texas Instruments, Post Office Box 655303, Dallas, Texas 75265 Copyright © 2022, Texas Instruments Incorporated